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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION,

Case No.

Plaintiff,

COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATIONS OF
THE FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS

v.
BONANHUANG
NAN HUANG,

Jury trial demanded

Defendants.

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") files this Complaint
against defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang, and alleges as follows:
SUMMARY
1.

Between at least November 2013 and January 2015 (hereinafter the "relevant

period"), defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang committed insider trading by
misappropriating information from their employer and using this material nonpublic information
to enrich themselves through unlawful trading.
2.

During the relevant period, defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang worked for

a large credit card issuer (hereinafter "Credit Card Company") as data analysts, tasked with
investigating potential fraudulent credit card activity.
3.

As a part of its business, Credit Card Company maintained a nonpublic database

that recorded the credit card activity of its millions of customers. Defendants Bonan Huang and
Nan Huang accessed this database hundreds, if not thousands of times, to retrieve aggregate
credit card sales information relating to numerous consumer retail companies.
4.

As set forth herein, defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang used the nonpublic

sales data from Credit Card Company's database (hereinafter "Sales Database") to make
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profitable securities transactions in advance of the public release of these companies' quarterly
sales announcements. Defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang placed these trades
immediately before the companies announced quarterly sales and earnings reports, securing
enormous short term profits.
5.

By misappropriating the Credit Card Company's data in this way, defendants

Bonan Huang and Nan Huang violated Credit Card Company's code of conduct and other rules
and regulations Credit Card Company established to regulate its employees use of data and
computing resources and breached a fiduciary duty, or obligation arising from a relationship of
trust and confidence.

VIOLATIONS
6.

By virtue of the conduct alleged herein, defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang

engaged in insider trading in violation of Section 1O(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
("Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.10b-5].
Unless defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang are permanently restrained and enjoined, they
will again engage in the acts, practices and courses of business set forth in the Complaint and in
similar acts, practices, and courses of business.

NATURE OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND RELIEF SOUGHT
7.

The Commission brings this action under the authority conferred upon it by

Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)]. The Commission seeks to permanently
enjoin defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang from engaging in the transactions, acts,
practices, and courses of business alleged in this Complaint, and seeks an order requiring
defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang to disgorge all profits realized or other ill-gotten gains
from the unlawful insider trading activity set forth in this Complaint, together with prejudgment
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interest. The Commission also brings this action, pursuant to Section 21 A of the Exchange Act
[15 U.S.C. § 78u-1], for civil penalties against defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang.
8.

To maintain the status quo and preserve assets sufficient for defendants Bonan

Huang and Nan Huang to pay disgorgement, prejudgment interest, and civil penalties in
accordance with any final judgment of this Court, the Commission seeks emergency relief: (i)
imposing asset freezes on certain brokerage and bank accounts owned or controlled by
defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang; and (ii) preventing the destruction of documents.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
9.

This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 21, 21 A and 27 of

the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u, 78u-1 and 78aa].
10.

Venue in this District is proper pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange Act [ 15

U.S.C. § 78aa]. Certain of the acts or transactions constituting the violations alleged occurred
within the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and were effected, directly or indirectly, by making
use of the means or instruments or instrumentalities of transportation or communication in
interstate commerce, or of the mails, or the facilities of a national securities exchange.

DEFENDANTS
11.

Bonan Huang, a citizen of the Peoples' Republic of China, age 32, resides in Glen

Allen, Virginia. Until January 16, 2015, Huang worked in the fraud department at Credit Card
Company as a senior data analyst. Huang began working at Credit Card Company in July 2011
and was terminated by Credit Card Company on January 16, 2015.
12.

Nan Huang, age 36, resides in Richmond, Virginia. Until January 16, 2015,

Huang worked in the fraud department at Credit Card Company as a senior data analyst. Huang
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began working at Credit Card Company in December 2008 and was terminated by Credit Card
Company on January 16, 2015.
COMMONLY-USED TRADING TERMS
13.

A stock option, commonly referred to as an "option," gives its purchaser-holder

the option to buy or sell shares of an underlying stock at a specified price (the "strike" price) at a
later date. Options are generally sold in "contracts," which give the option holder the
opportunity to buy or sell 100 shares of an underlying stock.
14.

A "put" option gives the purchaser-holder of the option the right, but not the

obligation, to sell a security at the specified strike price within a specified time period.
Generally, the buyer of a put option anticipates that the price of the underlying security will
decrease during a specified amount of time.
15.

A "call" option gives the purchaser-holder of the option the right, but not the

obligation, to purchase a security at the specified strike price within a specific time period.
Generally, the buyer of a call option anticipates that the price of the underlying security will
increase during a specified amount of time.
FACTS

A. Honan Huang and Nan Huang's Employment with Credit Card Company
16.

Defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang worked as senior data analysts in the

fraud department at Credit Card Company, which is one of the largest credit card issuers in the
United States. In this role, defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang were responsible for
investigating possible fraud against Credit Card Company and the retailers who were paid via
Credit Card Company's network.
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Bonan Huang and Nan Huang Misappropriated Information from Capital One and
Traded on this Information
17.

As a part of its business, Credit Card Company maintained a large database

compiling the credit card activity of its customers. Specifically, this Sales Database aggregated
all the purchases Credit Card Company's customers made. This information was nonpublic.
The database was searchable and Credit Card Company's authorized employees had the ability
to retrieve a subset of the data in the database by, for example, searching for transactions
involving a specific merchant.

18.

On December 23, 2011, January 8, 2013, April 16, 2013, defendant Bonan Huang

opened individual, IRA, and Roth IRA trading accounts, respectively, with OptionsHouse, an
online trading firm. Defendant Bonan Huang also traded using accounts at Scottrade and
TradeStation, but the majority of this trading activity occurred using his accounts at
OptionsHouse.
19.

On July 7, 2012, November 28,2012, and November 29, 2012, defendant Nan

Huang opened individual, IRA, and Roth IRA trading accounts, respectively, with
OptionsHouse. Defendant Nan Huang also traded using accounts at E*Trade, Interactive
Brokers, Legent Clearing, and Penson Financial Services, Inc., but the majority of this trading
activity occurred using his accounts at OptionsHouse.
20.

From at least November 2013 through January 2015, defendants Bonan Huang

and Nan Huang conducted hundreds, if not thousands, of key word searches on the Sales
Database for nonpublic credit card sales data of at least 170 publicly-traded consumer retail
companies owed payments by Credit Card Company's customers. Defendants Bonan Huang and
Nan Huang conducted searches for sales data for companies for multi-day periods and,
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importantly, for multi-month periods. These searches were not done in furtherance of
defendants' employment duties at Credit Card Company.
21.

It is believed and therefore averred that these searches allowed defendants Bonan

Huang and Nan Huang to view and analyze aggregated sales data for a specific company over a
defined time period. Accordingly, defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang could determine
whether a specific company's sales, through Credit Card Company's network, were increasing or
decreasing on a periodic basis.
22.

After conducting these searches, defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang

frequently saved the sales data for specific companies on Credit Card Company's computers,
often designating the saved data by the ticker symbol used for trading the securities of the
company. For example, a search for credit card sales for Apple, one of the most heavily-traded
stocks in the United States, would be saved as "AAPL," the ticker-symbol used to identify Apple
stock.
23.

Defendants knew or were reckless in not knowing that the information they

obtained from the Sales Database was material, nonpublic information.

B. The Extent of Bonan Huang and Nan Huang's Trading
24.

From January 2012 to January 2015, defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang

deposited a total of $14 7,300 into their six OptionsHouse accounts. During this time period they
transferred approximately $1 ,763,500 out of these six accounts. As of January 15, 20 15, the total
balance in the six accounts was approximately $1,063,000. Accordingly, Bonan Huang and Nan
Huang made approximately $2,826,500 trading during this period in their OptionsHouse account.
This represents a three-year return of approximately 1,819%.
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25.

Bonan Huang transferred some of the trading proceeds from his OptionsHouse

accounts to bank accounts at Bank of America. Nan Huang transferred some of the trading
proceeds from his OptionsHouse account to bank accounts at Barclays Bank Delaware.
26.

Defendant Bonan Huang's accounts at Scotttrade and Tradestation appear to have

been used to conduct similar trading as his accounts at OptionsHouse. Nan Huang's accounts at
InterActive Brokers, E*Trade, and Legent appear to have been used to conduct similar trading as
his accounts at OptionsHouse.
27.

Defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang did not make identical trades involving

these consumer retail companies but their trades were often similar. The allegations described
below regarding defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang's trading of Companies A, B, and C,
demonstrate how they misappropriated material nonpublic information from Credit Card
Company to enrich themselves.
Trading on Company A
28.

On January 15, 2014, Company A, a consumer retail company that sells outdoor

sporting goods, announced it would publicly release its fourth quarter and full fiscal year 20 I 3
financial results before the market opened on February 13, 2014.
29.

On February 7, 2014 and February 8, 2014, defendant Nan Huang conducted a

search in the Credit Card Company's nonpublic Sales Database for credit card sales data for
Company A. On February 12, 2014, at approximately 6:00a.m., defendant Bonan Huang
repeated this search.
30.

On February 12, 2014, when Company A's stock price was approximately $70

per share, defendant Bonan Huang purchased 19 contracts of put options on Company A's stock
with strike prices ranging from $65 to $70 and expiration dates of February 22, 2014, and sold
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13 put options on Company A's stock with a strike price of $60 and expiration date ofFebruary
22, 2014, for a total net cost of $4,277. Purchasing and selling these put options in this
combination meant that Bonan Huang would maximize his profit if Company A's share price
decreased to a range of $60 to $65 imminently.
31.

Also on February 12,2014, when Company A's stock price was approximately

$70, defendant Nan Huang purchased 170 contracts ofput options on Company A's stock with
strike prices of$65 and $70 and expiration dates of February 22, 2014, for $51,890. Purchasing
these put options meant that defendant Nan Huang would profit from a decrease in the share
price for Company A's stock by February 22,2014.
32.

Before the market opened on February 13, 2014 Company A released its sales and

earnings data for the fourth quarter of 2013. Company A's announced that their same quarter
sales decreased approximately 10%, and the share price for Company A decreased from $69.81
to $64.26, or approximately 8% that day.
33.

On February 13, 2014, Bonan Huang closed his options positions for Company A

for an illegal profit of $1 ,450.05, realizing an approximate 34% return on his one-day
investment. On February 13, 2014, defendant Nan Huang sold his options for Company A for
$107,950 realizing an illegal 108% return on his one-day investment.

Trading on Company B
34.

On April22, 2014, Company B, a consumer retail company that sells women's

and men's fashion accessories, announced that it would publicly report its third quarter financial
results on the morning of April29, 2014.
35.

On April27, 2014, defendant Bonan Huang conducted a search in Credit Card

Company's nonpublic Sales Database for credit card sales data for Company B.
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36.

On April28, 2014, when Company B's stock price was trading at approximately

$50 a share, defendant Bonan Huang purchased 420 contracts of put options on Company B' s
stock with strike prices ranging from $46 to $50.50 and expiration dates ranging from May 2,
2014 to May 17, 2014, for $63,440. Purchasing these put options meant that defendant Bonan
Huang would profit from an imminent decrease in Company B' s stock price.
37.

Also on April28, 2014, defendant Nan Huang purchased 230 contracts of put

options on Company B's stock with a strike price of$50 and an expiration date of May 2, 2014,
for $38,830. Purchasing these put options meant that defendant Nan Huang would profit from an
imminent decrease in Company B' s stock price.
38.

On April29, 2014, Company B publicly released its sales and earnings data for

the third quarter of2013. This data showed that Company B's same quarter sales decreased 7%,
and the share price for Company B fell almost $5 a share from April 28, 20 14 to the market close
on April29, 2014.
39.

On April29, 2014 defendant Bonan Huang sold his options for Company B for

$14 7, 140 realizing a one-day illegal return of approximately 132%, and defendant Nan Huang
sold his options for Company B for $97,200 realizing a one-day illegal return of approximately
150%.
Trading on Company C

40.

On June 16, 2014, Company C, a consumer retail company that sells "fast-casual"

food, announced that it would publicly announce its second quarter 2014 financial results after
the market closed on July 21, 2014.
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41.

On July 20, 2014, both defendant Bonan Huang and defendant Nan Huang

conducted a search in the Credit Card Company's nonpublic Sales Database for credit card sales
data for Company C.
42.

On July 21, 2014, when Company C's stock price was approximately $589 a

share, defendant Bonan Huang purchased 21 contracts of"call" options on Company C's stock
with strike prices ranging from $582.50 to $627.50 and expiration dates ranging from August 5,
2014 to November 5, 2014, for $43,270. Purchasing these call options meant that defendant
Bonan Huang would profit from an increase in the price of Company C's stock. Some of the
options contracts defendant Bonan Huang purchased were executed on the Philadelphia Stock
Exchange located in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.
43.

On July 21, 2014, defendant Nan Huang purchased 34 contracts of call options on

Company C's stock with strike prices ranging from $597.50 to $617.50 and expiration dates
ranging from August 5, 2014 to November 5, 2014, for $56,500. Purchasing these call options
meant that defendant Nan Huang would profit from an increase in the price of Company C's
stock.
44.

On July 21, 2014, after the market closed, Company C released its sales and

earnings data for the second quarter of2014. This data showed that Company C's same quarter
revenue increased by 28.6%. By market close on July 22,2014, Company C's share price had
increased from approximately $590 a share to approximately $660 a share, for a one-day
increase of approximately I 0.6%.
45.

On July 22, 2014 defendant Bonan Huang sold his options for Company C for

$133,066, realizing a one-day illegal return of approximately 208%, and on July 22, 2014 (and
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dates shortly thereafter) defendant Nan Huang sold his options for Company C for approximately
$244,710, realizing a short-term illegal return of approximately 333%.

C. Defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang Breached Their Duty to Capital One and
Violated Capital One's Policies
46.

Defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang knew or were reckless in not knowing

that they owed their employer a fiduciary duty, or an obligation arising from a relationship of
trust and confidence, to maintain the confidentiality of Credit Card Company's data and not to
use it for their own personal use.
4 7.

During the relevant time period, Credit Card Company had explicit policies and

procedures in place imposing an obligation on its employees, including defendants Bonan Huang
and Nan Huang, to maintain the confidentiality of its information and prohibiting its employees,
from trading on material nonpublic information.
48.

Credit Card Company's "End User Responsibilities and Acceptable Use

Standard," which applied to defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang stated:
Use all computing assets primarily for business purposes. Ensure that any personal use
does not interfere with normal business activities, involve any illegal or illicit behaviors,
associate with any for-profit outside business activity, involve solicitation, or impact the
[Credit Card Company] brand.
49.

Credit Card Company's "Code of Business Conduct and Ethics," dated July 2013,

which applied to defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang, specifically and explicitly proscribed
trading on the basis of material nonpublic information obtained during the course of employment
with Credit Card Company:

Do not engage in insider trading or tipping.
[Credit Card Company] will not tolerate or excuse violations of insider trading laws. In
general, these laws prohibit buying or selling stock in any public company, including
[Credit Card Company], when you have material information that has not been released
to the public.
11
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You must also refrain from communicating material non public information to anyone
who might use it to buy or sell securities. "Tipping" others may violate laws and can
result in penalties to all parties involved, including [Credit Card Company]. For
additional information, see the Securities Law Policy.
Material information not available to the public may be provided only to colleagues who
need the information to perform their duties. If you have access to such information, you
must not use it to buy or sell related securities, stock or derivatives until the second
business day after the information has been made public. Even if public announcements
are made regarding inside information, you may not release information that is still
confidential.
The same restrictions apply to trading stock of [Credit Card Company] business partners;
you cannot use any material nonpublic information you may obtain about their businesses
for your own personal advantage . . . . In addition, you may not communicate material
nonpublic information to others who could then use the information to buy or sell
securities.
When in doubt, assume information is material and nonpublic, and do not act upon it.
Simply put, you must not take part in any trading that may appear improper.
50.

By misappropriating Credit Card Company's confidential sales data for consumer

retail companies, and then trading in these companies as described above, defendants Bonan
Huang and Nan Huang violated Credit Card Company's stated policies and procedures regarding
confidentiality and securities trading and breached their duty to Credit Card Company.
51.

In each instance, the misappropriated information was material - it would be

important to a reasonable investor in making his or her investment decision, and, indeed, it was
important to defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang, when misappropriating the information.
There is a substantial likelihood that misappropriated nonpublic information would have been
viewed by a reasonable investor as having significantly altered the total mix of information
available to investors.
52.

At all times relevant to this Complaint, defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang

acted knowingly and/or recklessly.
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CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Violations of Section 1O(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 1Ob-5 Thereunder
53.

The Commission re-alleges and incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1

through 52.
54.

By engaging in the conduct described above, from at least November 2013

through January 2015, defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang, knowingly or recklessly, in
connection with the purchase or sale of securities, directly or indirectly, by use the means or
instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or the mails, or the facilities of a national securities
exchange:
(a)

employed devices, schemes or artifices to defraud;

(b)

made untrue statements of material facts or omitted to state material facts

necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading; and
(c)

engaged in acts, practices, or courses of business which operated or would

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person in connection with the purchase or sale of any
security.
55.

By engaging in the foregoing conduct defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang

violated, and unless enjoined will continue to violate, Section lO(b) of the Exchange Act [15
U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule lOb-5 [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5], thereunder.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court enter a final
j udgment:

I.
Permanently restraining and enj oining defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang from,
directly or indirectly, v iolating Section l O(b) ofthe Exchange Act [ 15 U.S .C. § 78j(b)] and Rule
1Ob-5 thereunder [ 17 C .F.R. § 240.1 Ob-5];

II.
Ordering defendants B onan Huang and Nan Huang to disgorge the unlawful trading
profits derived from the activities set forth in this Complaint, together w ith prejudgment interest
thereon;

III.
Ordering defendants Bonan Huang and Nan Huang to pay a civil pena lty up to three times
the profits made pursuant to Section 2 1A of the Exchange Act [ 15 U .S.C. § 78u-1 ] ;

IV.
Granting such other and further re lief as this Court may deem just, equitable, and
necessary.
Respectfully submitted,

G. JeffTey oujoukos
David L. Axelrod
Chr isto pher J. Kelly
Attorneys for Pla intiff
Securities and Exchange Commission
Phjladelphi a Regional Office
16 17 JFK Bou levard, Suite 520
Philadelphia, PA 19 J 03
Telephone: (2 15) 597-3 100
Facsimile: (2 15) 597-2740
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sufficient to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerk(s) in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit. If the cause fits more than
one nature of suit, select the most definitive.

V.

Origin. Place an "X" in one of the six boxes.
Original Proceedings. (l) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening d~te as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S. C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Mu1tidistrict Litigation. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407.
When this box is checked, do not check (5) above.

VI.

Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII.

Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII.

Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

; I

~tl

FOR THE EAST
T OF PENNSYLVANIA- DESIGNATION FORM to be used by counsel to indicate tbe eat;ao~ftbe case for t'f'Jl. u7Js'lf(
assignment to appropriate calendar.
0
1

J. 0

AddressofPlaintiff:

1617 JFK Blvd., Suite 520, Philadelphia,

t.:J

V

PA 19103

see attached

AddressofDefendant:

Place of Accident, Incident or Transaction:._ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _.,.,.--=---=-:--:::--..,.-:-:----::-::--:----------..,.-----------( Use Reverse Side For Additional Space)

No.

Does this civil action involve a nongovernmental corporate party with any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation owning
(Attach two copies of the Disclosure Statement Form in accordance with Fed.R.Civ.P. 7.l(a))

YesD
YesD

Does this case involve multidistrict litigation possibilities?

RELATED CASE, IF ANY:
CaseNumb~=------------Judge

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ DmeT~ated: _ _ _ _ _ _~~-----------

Civil cases are deemed related when yes is answered to any of the following questions:
1. Is this case related to property included in an earli~ numb~ed suit pending or within one year previously terminated action in this court?

YesD
NoO::
2. Does this case involve the same issue of fact or grow out of the same transaction as a prior suit pending or within one year previously terminated
action in this court?
YesD
No~
3. Does this case involve the validity or infringement of a patent already in suit or any earlier numb~ed case pending or within one year previously
terminated action in this court?

YesD

Notli:!

4. Is this case a second or successive habeas corpus, social security appeal, or pro se civil rights case filed by the same individual?
YesD
CNIL: (Place
A

No~

ONE CATEGORY ONLY)

Federal Question Cases:

B. Diversity Jurisdiction Cases;

l. o Indemnity Contract, Marine Contract, and All Other Contracts

1.

2. o FELA

2. o Airplane Personal Injury

3.

D

Jones Act-Personal Injury

3.

D

Insurance Contract and Other Contracts

D

Assault, Defamation
Marine Personal Injury

4.

D

Antitrust

4.

D

5.

D

Patent

5.

D

Motor Vehicle Personal Injury

6.

D

Labor-Management Relations

6.

D

Other Personal Injury (Please specify)

7.

D

Civil Rights

7.

D

Products Liability

· 8. o Habeas Corpus

8. o Products Liability

9. ~ecurities Act(s) Cases

Asbestos

9. o All other Diversity Cases

10."-Jocial Security Review Cases

(Please ~ecizy)

11. o All other Federal Question Cases
~l~se~ecizy)

_________________________________

ARBITRATION CERTIFICATION
(Check Appropriate Category)
,_,~:....,.q~-,.L-----,.L----------' counsel of record do hereby certizy:

ursuant to cal Civil R le 53.2, Section 3(c)(2), that to the best of my lmowledge and belief, the damages recoverable in this civil action case exceed the sum of
000.00 exclusive of interest and costs;
. ~ / /""""/
Relief other than monetary damages is s o u g h v~ ~
DATE:

1/22/2015

David L. Axelrod
Attorney-at-Law
Attorney I.D.#
NOTE: A trial de novo will be a trial by jury only if there has been compliance with F.R.C.P. 38.

I certify that, to my knowledge, tbe within case Is ~e~ny case n
except as noted above.
DATE:

1/22/2015

David L. Axelrod
Attorney-at-Law

CN. 609 (5/2012)

pending or within one year previously terminated action in tbis c:ourt

/ - / / - ~'

JAN 21 2015
Attorney l.D.#
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Attachment to Designation Form
Addresses of Defendants:
BONAN HUANG
4909 Westward TE
Glen Allen, VA 23059
NAN HUANG
2441 Hawkesbury Ct.
Richmond, VA 23233
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i{FO.fj~~!Ti~~ ~It.J.:i~~~~~~~JN~~~ImA

CASE MANAGEMENT TRACK DESIGNATION FORM
Securities and Exchange
CIVIL ACTION
Commission

15

v.

Bonan Huang
NO.
Nan Huang
In accordance with the Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan of this court, counsel for
plaintiff shall complete a Case Management Track Designation Form in all civil cases at the time of
filing the complaint and serve a copy on all defendants. (See § 1:03 of the plan set forth on the reverse
side of this form.) In the event that a defendant does not agree with the plaintiff regarding said
designation, that defendant shall, with its first appearance, submit to the clerk of court and serve on
the plaintiff and all other parties, a Case Management Track Designation Form specifYing the track
to which that defendant believes the case should be assigned.

SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CASE MANAGEMENT TRACKS:
(a) Habeas Corpus- Cases brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2241 through§ 2255.

( )

(b) Socia] Security - Cases requesting review of a decision of the Secretary of Health
and Human Services denying plaintiff Social Security Benefits.

( )

(c) Arbitration

( )

Cases required to be designated for arbitration under Local Civil Rule 53.2.

(d) Asbestos- Cases involving claims for personal injury or property damage from
exposure to asbestos.

( )

(e) Special Management- Cases that do not fall into tracks (a) through (d) that are
commonly referred to as complex and that need special or intense management by
the court. (See reverse side of this form for a detailed explanation of special
management cases.)
(t) Standard Management

1/22/2015

Date
215-861-9625

Telephone

Cases tha~y~ one of the other tracks..
David L. Axelrod
Attorney-at-law
215-597-2740

FAX Number

Plaintiff
Attorney for

~~~~~~-------------

axelrodd®sec.gov

E-Mail Address

{Civ. 660) 10/02

JAN 21 2015
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Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan
Section 1:03- Assignment to a Management Track
(a)

The clerk of court will assign cases to tracks (a) through (d) based on the initial pleading.

(b)
In all cases not appropriate for assignment by the clerk of court to tracks (a) through (d), the
plaintiff shall submit to the clerk of court and serve with the complaint on all defendants a case management
track designation form specifying that the plaintiff believes the case requires Standard Management or
Special Management. In the event that a defendant does not agree with the plaintiff regarding said
designation, that defendant shall, with its first appearance, submit to the clerk of court and serve on the
plaintiff and all other parties, a case management track designation form specifying the track to which that
defendant believes the case should be assigned.
(c)
The court may, on its own initiative or upon the request of any party, change the track
assignment of any case at any time.
(d)
Nothing in this Plan is intended to abrogate or limit a judicial officer's authority in any case
pending before that judicial officer, to direct pretrial and trial proceedings that are more stringent than those
of the Plan and that are designed to accomplish cost and delay reduction.
(e)
Nothing in this Plan is intended to supersede Local Civil Rules 40.1 and 72.1, or the
procedure for random assignment of Habeas Corpus and Social Security cases referred to magistrate judges
of the court.

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT CASE ASSIGNMENTS
(See §1.02 (e) Management Track Definitions of the
Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan)
Special Management cases will usually include that class of cases commonly referred to as "complex
litigation" as that term has been used in the Manuals for Complex Litigation. The first manual was prepared
in 1969 and the Manual for Complex Litigation Second, MCL 2d was prepared in 1985. This term is
intended to include cases that present unusual problems and require extraordinary treatment. See §0.1 of the
first manual. Cases may require special or intense management by the court due to one or more of the
following factors: (1) large number of parties; (2) large number of claims or defenses; (3) complex factual
issues; (4) large volume of evidence; (5) problems locating or preserving evidence; (6) extensive discovery;
(7) exceptionally long time needed to prepare for disposition; (8) decision needed within an exceptionally
short time; and (9) need to decide preliminary issues before final disposition. It may include two or more
related cases. Complex litigation typically includes such cases as antitrust cases; cases involving a large
number of parties or an unincorporated association of large membership; cases involving requests for
injunctive relief affecting the operation of large business entities; patent cases; copyright and trademark
cases; common disaster cases such as those arising from aircraft crashes or marine disasters; actions brought
by individual stockholders; stockholder's derivative and stockholder's representative actions; class actions or
potential class actions; and other civil (and criminal) cases involving unusual multiplicity or complexity of
factual issues. See §0.22 of the first Manual for Complex Litigation and Manual for Complex Litigation
Second, Chapter 33.

